THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court Of Appeals

RECEIVED

AUG 12 2015

APPEAL FROM SPARTANBURG COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

SC Court of Appeals

R. Keith Kelly, Circuit Court Judge

Case No.: 2015-000907

The StateRespondent

v.

Jack Randall MooreAppellant.

**FINAL BRIEF
OF APPELLANT**

O. W. Bannister, S.C. Bar No. 00506
BANNISTER, WYATT & STALVEY, LLC
Post Office Box 10007
Greenville, South Carolina 29603
Phone: 864-298-0084
Fax: 864-298-0146

August 6, 2015

Other Counsel of Record:

Charles J. Hodge
Hodge & Langley Law Firm, PC
Post Office Box 2765
Spartanburg, South Carolina 29304-2765

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court Of Appeals

APPEAL FROM SPARTANBURG COUNTY

STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL

THE COURT ERRED IN NOT ALLOWING THE APPELLANT TO CROSS EXAMINE A PROSECUTING WITNESS ABOUT STATEMENTS THE PROSECUTING WITNESS ALLEGEDLY MADE BECAUSE THE CROSS EXAMINATION WAS PERMITTED BY THE RULES OF EVIDENCE AND THE EXCLUSION OF THE CROSS EXAMINATION WAS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION AND DAMAGED THE APPELLANT'S DEFENSE.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On or about November 19, 2013, the Appellant Jack Randall Moore (Moore) was arrested for falsely reporting a stolen tractor in violation of S.C. Code §16-21-100 which states: "A person who knowingly makes a false report of the theft or conversion of a vehicle to a peace officer or to the Department is guilty of a misdemeanor."

Trial was held before Magistrate Charles Jones who declared a mistrial following the introduction of certain evidence ruled inadmissible in an earlier sidebar.

The second trial was held before Magistrate James B. Paslay on July 23, 2014. Moore was found guilty and fined.

Moore filed his Notice of Appeal from the Magistrate's Court on July 31, 2014. That appeal was heard before the Honorable R. Keith Kelly on March 3, 2015. Judge Kelly affirmed the conviction by Form 4 Order dated March 4, 2015. Moore received Judge Kelly's Order on March 9, 2015 and filed his Notice of Appeal with the Court on March 13, 2015. The appeal was received by the Court of Appeals on March 18, 2015.

SUMMARY OF FACTS

The Appellant, Jack R. Moore, (Moore) was a sixty (60) year old business man who had never been arrested prior to this incident. His businesses included manufacturing carriages for sale and in collecting and hauling waste oil from customers. (R. p. 49, line 9) Melvin Stewart (Stewart) was an independent truck driver who made his living by hauling loads for various brokers throughout the United States. He basically lived in his truck. During some of his hauls Stewart made the acquaintance of a nineteen (19) year old truck stop waitress named Ellen Bradley (Bradley). (R. p. 23, lines 11-14) Stewart and Bradley began a relationship in which Stewart drove the truck and Bradley handled the paperwork. For tax reasons Stewart's tractor was in the name of Bradley but the refrigerated trailer remained in his name. (R. p. 25)

In 2013 Stewart was diagnosed with Stage 4 lung cancer. (R. p. 25) With his health deteriorating to the point he could no longer drive the tractor, Stewart hired a driver named William Richard Coleman a/k/a Rick Coleman (Coleman). (R. p. 26)

Moore and Stewart had been long time friends and had occasionally considered going into some type of business arrangement together. (R. p. 50, lines 17-21) In any event, Moore purchased Stewart's refrigerated trailer on October 2, 2013 for the sum of \$10,000. At that time Coleman was driving the tractor belonging to Bradley and the refrigerated trailer belonging to Stewart until it was sold to Moore. (R. p. 51, line 19 – p. 52, line 21)

According to Moore, he and Stewart contacted Coleman after the purchase and ordered Coleman to bring the trailer back to South Carolina and deliver it to Moore. (R. p. 55, lines 9-11)

Coleman refused to bring the trailer back and Moore had conversations with Bradley on the following times and dates. October 21, 2013 – seven minutes (R. p. 35, lines 24-25); October 24, 2013 (R. p. 36, lines 6-8); October 26, 2013 – seventeen minutes (R. p. 36, line 24 – p. 37, line 19).

According to Moore, he demanded Bradley order Coleman to return his trailer to him. According to Bradley, she and Moore did not discuss his ownership of the trailer or his demand that the trailer be returned during these telephone conversations prior to October 26th. Although she talked to Coleman daily, she and Coleman never discussed Moore's ownership of the trailer. (R. p. 37, line 20 – p. 38, line 3)

Because he could not get his trailer returned, Moore contacted brokers he knew who would assign loads to Stewart, Bradley or Coleman and instructed the brokers not to load the trailer. Moore was contacted by a broker who advised that Coleman and the trailer were in the State of Washington and that the broker was refusing to load the tractor on Moore's instructions.

Shortly thereafter Moore received a text message from Bradley which stated, "Tell Melvin (Stewart) that since I can't load trailer back, he can pick the trailer up, but oops I forgot where we left it." (R. p. 80)

Moore took this as a threat to leave the trailer in the State of Washington where he expected it would be stolen or hauled off and he would never see it again. For that reason

he ordered to broker to go ahead and load the trailer but to tell him where the trailer was going. The broker complied and advised Moore that the trailer was hauling a load to Zebulon, North Carolina.

At this point Moore contacted the Spartanburg Sheriff's Department and reported that his trailer was in the possession of Coleman who would not return it. The officer who took the report characterized the possession by Coleman as theft and contacted the NCIC with the information in regard to the trailer. That information went to the law enforcement authorities in Zebulon, North Carolina who arrested Coleman for having a stolen trailer and notified Moore that he could come and retrieve his trailer which he did.

After some investigation the Spartanburg County detective determined that the trailer was not stolen and therefore Moore had made a false report. The officer was ambivalent as to whether the use of the word "stolen" would have resulted in Moore's arrest if Moore had simply said his trailer was "converted".

Following Coleman's arrest he gave a statement to the Spartanburg County Sheriff's Office that he was unaware that Moore had purchased the trailer. He further stated that in the conversation he had had with Stewart and Moore neither one of them had ever requested that he bring the trailer back to South Carolina. The charges against Coleman in North Carolina were subsequently dismissed.

After Moore retrieved his trailer, Bradley called Moore and left a message on his cell phone voice mail that said, "Jack, this is Ellen. I hope you consulted with your attorney before you did this, because you just declared war." (R. p. 39, lines 11-17)

Following the dismissal of the charges against Coleman in North Carolina and the arrest of Moore, Bradley hired attorney Charles J. Hodge to explore a suit against Moore in the event he was convicted. She signed a contract with Hodge for the suit. (R. p. 31, lines 5-8) Bradley also introduced Coleman to Mr. Hodge for the purpose of bringing a lawsuit against Moore for false arrest. (R. p. 31, lines 23 – p. 32, line 7) Attorney Hodge ended up as a special prosecutor for the solicitor's office against Moore.

Subsequent to the arrest of Moore, Coleman gave a sworn affidavit and a recorded statement in which he quoted certain conversations that he had had with Bradley. In that sworn statement Coleman said words to the effect that Bradley told him, “Don’t worry about Jack Moore. You work for me. Just don’t bring the damn trailer into South Carolina. Everything is fine. I’ve got this under control.” Further, Bradley said, “Well, let me call that SOB. I’ll just tell him that we will leave the trailer at a damn truck stop or rest area beside the road. Hell, I can’t remember where we left it Jack. You’ll have to find it. (R. p. 75)

Subsequently, Coleman gave an affidavit to Bradley and Attorney Hodge in which he denied Bradley had ever made these statements.

At the first trial held in this case, Coleman was not subpoenaed by the prosecution to attend. In that trial, the magistrate ruled that Bradley could be asked if she made these specific statements to Coleman. The magistrate ruled that this questioning was proper. Prosecutor Hodges sought to introduce the affidavit of Coleman repugnant to Coleman’s earlier affidavits from which these questions came. The magistrate ruled that it would be improper to introduce the affidavit.

Following the questioning of Bradley about making these specific statements to Coleman which she denied, Prosecutor Hodges asked Bradley if Coleman's statements in his affidavit of statements made by Bradley to him were hearsay and did not allow Moore to ask Bradley was being questioned. Moore moved for a mistrial which was granted.

In the second trial the magistrate ruled that Coleman's statements in his affidavit of statements made by Bradley to him were hearsay and did not allow Moore to ask Bradley if she had made those statements. Moore made a proffer to the court of the questions that would have been asked and those appear of record.

ARGUMENT

THE COURT ERRED IN NOT ALLOWING THE APPELLANT TO CROSS EXAMINE A PROSECUTING WITNESS ABOUT STATEMENTS THE PROSECUTING WITNESS ALLEGEDLY MADE BECAUSE THE CROSS EXAMINATION WAS PERMITTED BY THE RULES OF EVIDENCE AND THE EXCLUSION OF THE CROSS EXAMINATION WAS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION AND DAMAGED THE APPELLANT'S DEFENSE.

Moore had the constitutional right to confront Bradley as a witness against him under both the Sixth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution and Article I, Section 14 of the S.C. Constitution.

Rule 613, S.C.R.E., subsection (a) sets forth permission for Moore to question Bradley about the statement Bradley allegedly made to Coleman. Subsection (b) sets forth the requirement of introducing extrinsic evidence of the prior inconsistent statement by the witness.

Prior inconsistent statements made by witnesses are not hearsay when offered to impeach the witness's trial testimony. The prior inconsistent statement is not offered to prove the truth of the matter asserted, but to impeach the current testimony of the witness. State v. Smith, 309 S.C. 442, 424 S.E.2d 496 (1992); see also State v. Galloway, 263 S.C. 585, 211 S.E.2d 885 (1975).

Credibility was a key issue at this trial. Bradley denied being advised that Moore had purchased the trailer until October 26th. Bradley acknowledged having several telephone conversations with Moore prior to that time but denied Moore told her that he had purchased the trailer and wanted it back.

On the other hand, Moore testified that in the telephone conversations with Coleman and Bradley he advised both that he owned the trailer and wanted it back, but they refused to return it. If true, Moore's report to the police would have been factual in that Bradley and Coleman had converted his trailer to their own use.

Bradley was supplied with Coleman's affidavit which contained the statements she allegedly made to him in the first trial and in the second trial.

Coleman's out of court statement quoting Bradley was hearsay but permissible impeachment material.


The wrongful exclusion of these impeaching questions to Bradley was not harmless. Coleman and Bradley were private clients of the prosecutor and both had motives to misrepresent what happened. Bradley and Coleman were going to sue Moore if he was convicted; Coleman for false arrest and Bradley for defamation. Coleman's affidavit was damning to the State's criminal case and to the plans to convict Moore and

sue him for money with the State's help. Coleman's absence from the trial was at the choice of the prosecution. Depriving Moore of his right to question Bradley about her statement to Coleman further prevented any attempt to offer any impeaching testimony on behalf of Moore.

Because credibility was such a key issue, the exclusion of cross examination concerning statements Bradley allegedly made was not harmless error.