THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

RECEIVED

JUL 30 2015

APPEAL FROM SPARTANBURG COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

SC Court of Appeals

R. Keith Kelly, Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2015-000907

The State,

Respondent,

v.

Jack Randall Moore,

Appellant.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Charles J. Hodge, SC Bar #002537
Hodge & Langley Law Firm, P.C.
Attorneys for Respondent
P.O. Box 2765
Spartanburg, SC 29304
Phone: (864) 585-3873
Fax: (864) 585-6485

July 28, 2015

Other Counsel of Record:
O. W. Bannister
Bannister, Wyatt & Stalvey, LLC
P.O. Box 10007
Greenville, SC 29603

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM SPARTANBURG COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

DID THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY EXCLUDE THE OUT-OF-COURT STATEMENT BY RICK COLEMAN FOR USE AS IMPEACHMENT AGAINST ELLEN BRADLEY BECAUSE THE STATEMENT WAS CLEARLY HEARSAY?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On October 30, 2013, Jack Randall Moore, reported a refrigerated tractor trailer he had allegedly purchased was stolen. He was arrested for falsely reporting a stolen tractor in violation of S.C. Code Section 16-21-100 which states “a person who knowingly makes a false report of the theft or conversion of a vehicle to a peace officer or to the department is guilty of a misdemeanor.”

The original trial was held before Magistrate Charles Jones on May 14, 2014. During trial of that case, Appellant’s counsel began cross-examining witness Ellen Bradley from a statement made by the driver of the tractor. The prosecution objected and a sidebar was held. Although counsel for the Appellant was instructed not to ask questions from the statement, he resumed immediately. On redirect, the prosecution asked one question: “These questions that Mr. Bannister was reading, are you aware of an Affidavit executed that refutes everything that he asked?” An objection was posed by defense counsel at that time and a mistrial was requested. Judge Jones granted defense counsel’s request.

The second trial was held before Magistrate James B. Pasley on July 23, 2014. Once again, defense counsel attempted to use a statement made by a witness not present at trial to impeach the testimony of Ellen Bradley. Judge Pasley refused to allow the out-of-Court hearsay. Defendant Moore was found guilty and fined.

Moore filed his Notice of Appeal from the Magistrate Court on July 31, 2014. The appeal was heard before the Honorable R. Keith Kelly on March 3, 2015. Judge Kelly affirmed the conviction. A Notice of Appeal was filed with the S.C. Court of Appeals.

SUMMARY OF FACTS

Jack Moore allegedly purchased a refrigerated trailer belonging to Melvin Stewart in early October 2013. (R. p. 20, lines 14-18) The tractor that hauled the refrigerated trailer was owned by Ellen Bradley. Bradley and Stewart had done business for many years. (R. p. 22, lines 6-9) Stewart contracted cancer and was unable to drive the tractor. (R. p. 25, lines 1, 21-22) He secured a driver named Rick Coleman. (R. p. 26, line 14) A typical route for Bradley and Stewart's business would be to take a load to Washington state arranged through a broker and bring back another load to the East coast. (R. p. 24, lines 9-18)

While Rick Coleman was dispatched to Washington state, Melvin Stewart had been picked up from the hospital by Jack Moore. Moore conveyed to trucking brokers that his trailer had been stolen. Bradley and Moore reached an agreement through an intermediary, Ronald Thompson, on October 24, 2013 to deliver the refrigerated trailer back to Moore. (R. p. 47, lines 5-19) The tractor and trailer were already in Washington state so a broker arranged for a load of potatoes to be picked up in Idaho. The potatoes were then to be transported to Zebulon, North Carolina. From there, the refrigerated trailer would be delivered to Moore. (R. p. 27, line 2-25) On October 30, 2013, after the agreement had been reached for delivery of the trailer, Jack Moore filed a report with the Spartanburg County Sheriff's Department alleging the trailer had been stolen. (R. p. 21, lines 18-21) When the driver arrived with the load of potatoes in Zebulon, North

Carolina, he was detained by the authorities, arrested, and the tractor and trailer were confiscated. (R. p. 28, lines 2-6 and 15-24)

After completion of his investigation, Spartanburg County Sheriff's Department officer, Bryan White, had Moore arrested on November 19, 2013 for falsely reporting a stolen tractor in violation of S.C. Code Section 16-21-100. (R. p. 113)

On May 14, 2014, a trial was held before Magistrate Charles Jones. In a pre-trial conference a discussion was held between the attorneys for the parties and the Magistrate. The attorney for the defendant had attained a statement from the driver, Rick Coleman, which was disparaging towards one of the prosecution witnesses, Ellen Bradley. (R. pp. 72-77) The prosecution had obtained an Affidavit from Mr. Coleman which refuted his previous statement. (R. p. 79) In chambers with the Magistrate, both attorneys acknowledged the statements were clearly hearsay. The prosecution offered to have both statements come in or neither. This was not agreeable to defendant's counsel as he wished only for Coleman's first statement to come in. The Magistrate ruled the statements would not be allowed.

On cross-examination of Ms. Bradley during the first trial, defense counsel for Moore brought out Coleman's statement. He began reading the statement as a series of questions. The prosecution objected and defense counsel was admonished not to do that. He immediately began to do it again. (R. pp. 1-3) On redirect, the prosecution asked Ms. Bradley if she was aware of an Affidavit which refuted the statements defense counsel had just read in front of the jury. (R. p. 4, lines 9-15) Defense counsel then made a motion for mistrial, which was granted. (R. pp. 5-8)

The second trial was held on July 23, 2014 before Magistrate James Pasley. Defense counsel once again attempted to use the statement by Rick Coleman to impeach

the testimony of Ellen Bradley. Magistrate Pasley denied defense counsel's request. (R. pp. 14-15)

The trial was held and Jack Moore was found guilty. (R. p. 67)

ARGUMENT

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY EXCLUDED THE OUT-OF-COURT STATEMENT BY RICK COLEMAN FOR USE AS IMPEACHMENT AGAINST ELLEN BRADLEY BECAUSE THE STATEMENT WAS CLEARLY HEARSAY.

Rule 801(c), S.C.R.E., defines hearsay as a statement, other than one made by the declarant while testifying at the trial or hearing, offered in evidence to prove the truth of the matter asserted.

The statement of Rick Coleman procured by the defendant was made out-of-Court. Obviously, the defendant procured this statement in an effort to prove the truth of the matters asserted. It should be noted Coleman was paid by Moore for that statement. (R. p. 79)

Moore argues he had the Constitutional right to confront Bradley as a witness against him under both the 6th Amendment of the U.S. Constitution and Article I, Section 14 of the S.C. Constitution. The prosecution does not dispute this. Moore exercised his right to confront Bradley in front of the jury.

Moore's argument that Rule 613, S.C.R.E., subsection (a) sets forth permission for Moore to question Bradley about the statement Bradley allegedly made to Coleman is misplaced. Ellen Bradley did not give the previous statement; Rick Coleman did. If Ellen Bradley had made the statement and signed it, certainly it would be appropriate for her to be confronted with it, but she did not. If the Court follows defendant's reasoning,

any criminal defendant could pay a third party to issue a statement which disparaged a key witness for the prosecution whether it was true or not. It could be done in a murder case, a rape case, or any serious criminal case. The ramifications would be enormous. There would be no such thing as hearsay; anything would come in. This, the prosecution submits, would be a ludicrous result.

The defense continues to push the argument that Rick Coleman's testimony is somehow a prior inconsistent statement of Ellen Bradley. Again, defense counsel's argument is misplaced. The inconsistent statements were from Coleman, not from Bradley. Coleman issued the original statement after being paid by Moore, and then recanted and issued a sworn Affidavit which described what really occurred. The second Magistrate, Judge Pasley, had an exchange with defense counsel and properly outlines why he did not rule Coleman's first statement could come in for impeachment purposes against Ms. Bradley:

BY MR. BANNISTER: That's what Judge Jones made the ruling on, that it was proper cross examination since there was a solid basis to ask her.

BY THE MAGISTRATE: And that basis is an out of court statement from a witness who's not going to be in court today?

BY MR. BANNISTER: Yes, sir. Absolutely.

BY THE MAGISTRATE: Well, I disagree with Judge Jones' ruling. I don't find that as a basis for bringing in that statement.

BY MR. BANNISTER: Based on the fact that I can't bring you some evidence on that now?

BY THE MAGISTRATE: Yes, sir. If you -- I mean, we're right here now and unless you can show me some supporting case law that says that this procedure is proper, I don't interpret the rule to allow you to bring in hearsay in your cross examination of a witness.

BY MR. BANNISTER: I understand your ruling, Judge, and I respectfully disagree.

BY THE MAGISTRATE: And it's on the record.

BY MR. BANNISTER: When we get to the point, for the purposes of the record, I will have to make a proffer out of the presence of the jury in this examination.

BY THE MAGISTRATE: We'll do that, although I'm not sure what -- again, if it's an out of court statement and you're going to ask her, in essence, to refute an out of court witness's statement, that's a backdoor hearsay. If it was an exception, if it's res gestae, if it was any type of exception, that would be different.

BY MR. BANNISTER: It's not an exception, Judge, to offering it for the truth that as a matter of certainty. It's to test this witness by cross examination as to whether she made the statement or not. And if I have a basis to ask her that, under impeachment of a witness, I ---